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NYCHA RFP to Implement a Community-Driven Preservation 
and Investment Strategy for Fulton and Elliott-Chelsea 

Key Updates and 3rd Round of Questions and Answers  

 

Key Updates 

NEW Fulton Roofs -  

• NYCHA is excited to share that our Capital Planning Department (“CPD”) will upgrade/replace all 
roofs at Fulton Houses. Applicants do not need to consider roof repair/replacement costs in their 
proposed scope of work and financial plans. This allocation does not include the roofs at Elliott, 
Chelsea and Chelsea Addition – these will remain the responsiblity of the Designated Project 
Team to address.  

• CPD will design and procure a vendor to install and/or upgrade the roofs at Fulton Houses. This 
work will be ongoing at the time the property converts to Project-Based Section 8 through PACT, 
and will be completed by NYCHA CPD or its vendor after the conversion. NYCHA’s Real Estate 
Development Department and CPD will coordinate with the Designated Project Team to ensure 
the roof designs will complement and be protected during any planned upgrades/investment to be 
funded through PACT. 

PACT, New Construction and Other Funding Strategies -  

• NYCHA and HDC anticipate that the PACT program should address the majority of the capital 
needs at the developments; however, to finance any gaps that may remain in the Project sources, 
Applicants may elect to utilize the additional new construction opportunities identified in the RFP 
to generate funds. Please note, Applicants are not required to propose new construction at any or 

all locations and should regard these opportunities as a secondary source of financing. 

Alternative Design Scenario -   

• NYCHA wants to remind Applicants that this RFP includes the option to submit an additional, 
alternative scenario that deviates from the recommendations of the Chelsea Working Group, but 
still achieves the goal of providing comprehensive repairs to the four Properties and creating an 
enhanced built environment with additional amenities for NYCHA residents. Applicants are 
encouraged to think creatively about design interventions that may not have been considered as 
part of the Working Group process and should clearly explain the benefit that they provide to 
NYCHA residents. 

• While the Working Group developed recommendations and made preliminary estimates on 
proceeds, market conditions have fluctuated greatly over the past 18 months. NYCHA, HDC, and 
the Resident Review Committee must select a project that is financially sound, and that may 
mean a Proposal that is different from the proposed development scenario recommended by the 
Working Group. 
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Strong Community Support -  

• While NYC government will undergo an administration change later this year, NYCHA wants to 
assure Applicants that this project remains a high-priority for NYCHA and the entire Chelsea 
Working Group, which included a group of residents, elected officials and staff, Community Board 
4 members, affordable housing and legal advocates, and NYCHA and Mayor’s office staff (see 
full list within The Working Group Report).  

• The Working Group collaborated over the course of 18 months to make recommendations that 
ensure a successful PACT conversion would address the urgent capital improvement and repair 
needs at the four Properties, irregardless of an administration change.  

 

3rd Round of Questions and Answers: 

*The following  represent a set of responses to questions asked during the June 23rd and June 24th Site Tours 
or received as of June 30, 2021. Note that all Defined Terms relate to the definitions provided within the RFP. 

 

1. Will NYCHA offer additional in-person tours? 

• A: If we hear from enough Applicant Teams that are interested in doing an additional in-

person tour (if interested, please email: FultonElliottChelseaRFP@nycha.nyc.gov), we 

will host another one; otherwise, NYCHA will offer a virtual tour through a 3D space 

capture (via Matterport). This 3D scan will capture various locations within the buildings, 

including all areas of the developments that were seen during the June in-person tours. 

NYCHA plans to release this 3D capture virtual tour in July. 

2. Can teams be creative with the redesign of the entry way spaces that include columns? 

• A: Yes - One of the Chelsea Working Group’s principal recommendations is to “[a]ctivate 
space by re-configuring or re-locating existing building entrances to ensure safety, and to 
adjust to new retail spaces.” Much like the scope of work items applicable to building 
systems, the Designated Project Team will be expected to provide ample opportunities 
for tenants to weigh in on design elements and improvements in shared spaces, 
hallways, stairwells, elevators, front doors, and outdoor areas – including entryways.  

• Overall, Proposals must conform to the NYCHA Design Guidelines for the Rehabilitation 
of NYCHA Residential Buildings, the NYCHA Connected Communities Guidebook, the 
NYCHA Climate Mitigation Road Map, Active Design Guidelines, the Zoning Resolution, 
the New York City Construction Codes, and all other applicable laws and regulations. 

 

3. What are the security needs at the developments? 

• A: As a general matter, safety has been a big concern for residents at Fulton and Elliott-

Chelsea Houses and the pandemic has only exacerbated conditions. As mentioned on 

the tour, residents have concerns that the antiquated security camera system is prone to 

vandalization, and that the lack of lobby and building entrance security has lead to non-

residents gaining unauthorized access, especially homeless individuals.  

https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/nycha/downloads/pdf/Chelsea-NYCHA-WG-Report-Final.pdf
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• Applicants are asked to submit a security plan as part of their Proposal’s Property 

Management Plan and as described within the RFP, the security plan should strive to 

achieve the following:  

a. Adequate guard coverage; 

b. Upgrades to the CCTV infrastructure, where applicable; 

c. A mechanism to alert FDNY of any emergency calls from elevator cabs; 

d. A communication protocol, or ‘tip hotline’ for resident outreach, and a means to 

communicate these concerns directly to the appropriate authority; 

e. Support for ‘resident watch’ efforts, inclusive of funds to support light 

equipment / resources for volunteers; 

f. Means for data collection; and, 

g. Funding to reimburse NYCHA for the utilization of the existing equipment 

during the interim conversion period. 

 

4. Currently, what are the main issues with addressing repairs in occupied units requested 
by tenants? 

• A: There are both administrative hurdles in processing repair requests, as well as staff 
shortage and lack of funds to address certain repairs in a timely fashion. Applicant 
Proposals should be accompanied by a completed Management Questionnaire (Exhibit 
R) capturing Applicant’s approach to property management as it relates to customer 
service, operations, and resident communication. A component of the questionnaire 
requires Applicants to explain management’s work order process (including quality 
assurance), along with other maintenance and repair administration details. Per the RFP 
and Chelsea Working Group Report, all open NYCHA work orders on the developments 
to be converted through PACT will be inherited by the Designated Applicant Team. 

 
5. What is the current elevator maintenance schedule? When were the elevators installed and 

have any of the elevator systems been recently repaired? 

• A: Each device has monthly preventative maintenance performed, but there have not 
been any major elevator repairs for these developments recently. The elevators at Fulton 
were replaced in 1997, at Elliott in 1995, at Chelsea Addition in 1995, and the elevators 
at Chelsea were replaced in 2011 

• Applicants should review the scope of work exhibit sections dealing with elevators and 
prepare plans for elevator rehabilitation in the Systems section of the PACT Scope of 
Work. Prior to finalizing a scope of work for the developments, and the Designated 
Project Team will host a series of meetings with residents concerning the scope of work. 

 
6. Which developments have boilers and which are connected to municipal steam heat?  

• A: Fulton Houses is served by municipal high pressure steam, and Chelsea, Chelsea 
Addition, and Elliott Houses are heated by on-site steam boilers. Elliott Houses has a 
newer system that is currently managed by a third-party vendor. 

 
7. What issues are caused by the municipal steam heat that provides service to Fulton 

Houses? 
• A: If there is an issue with the high-pressure municipal heating system at Fulton Houses, 

a special technician (high pressure steam plumber) is required to conduct repairs and 
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multiple buildings have to go offline to conduct those repairs. This causes significant 
delays in restoring service. Applicants should propose alternatives to this system.  

i. Note from Heating Management Services Department: The buildings’ heating system 
is not a high pressure plant. High pressure enters the building from the utility provider 
(Con Ed Direct Steam) at around 180PSI, the high pressure steam is then reduced down 
to low pressure (10 PSI) by a series of pressure regulating valves. These pressure 
regulating valves are also know as reducing stations. Any issues before the meter and on 
the main high pressure steam service line, is coordinated with the utility company. Issues 
with the steam reducing stations (normally after the meter) require staff with a specialized 
skill set. Issues on the low pressure side (Building distribution) of the steam reducing 
station can be handled by the building’s boiler maintenance staff.   

 

8. Will NYPA utility rates be offered?  

• A: Yes, for electricity NYCHA will hold the account and pass on the applicable rate, at the 
developer’s election. Please reference the ‘Utility Management Section’ of the RFP for 
further detail.  

 
9. When was the last round of Local Law 11 inspections at the developments and what level 

of repointing is needed?  

• A: Please refer to the attached Modernization Report as well as the Scope of Work 
exhibit. 
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